ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 6, 2006
1:37 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Charlie Huggins, Chair
Senat or John Cowdery, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Gene Therri aul t
Senat or Al bert Kookesh

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 18
"An Act relating to notor vehicles equipped wth data recording
or transmtting devices."

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 18

SHORT TI TLE: AUTO DEALERS DI SCLOSURE DATA RECORDER
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) ELTON

01/ 11/ 05 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 30/ 04

01/ 11/ 05 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 11/ 05 (S) TRA, JUD

04/ 06/ 06 (H TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

PAUL A. WLEY, Staff to Senator Elton
State Capitol, Room 115

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 18

KEVIN O NEI L

Chief of Staff to Senator TimLeslie, California
Tahoe City, CA

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 18

CLYDE E. (ED) SNI FFEN JR., Assistant Attorney Ceneral

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- April 6, 2006



Departnent of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 18

SENATOR KI M ELTON

State Capitol, Room 115

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor, SB 18

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
CHAIR CHARLIE HUGE NS called the Senate Transportation Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 1:37:33 PM Present were Senators
John Cowdery, Hollis French and Chair Charlie Huggins.

SB 18- AUTO DEALERS DI SCLOSURE DATA RECORDER

CHAIR CHARLIE HUGEA NS announced SB 18 to be up for
consi derati on.

SENATOR KIM ELTON, sponsor, introduced staff nenber, Paul WIey
to assist himw th an explanation of the bill.

SENATOR ELTON said that the bill acconplishes two things:
Section 1 provides for consumer notification and section 2
provides a recipe for release of data that is collected by an
event data recorder (EDR), or “black box”. He explained that
bl ack boxes record speed, seat belt, stopping distance, braking
data, steering data, and severity of inpact data. They have been
commonly used since the late 1990's to inprove the safety of
cars. General Mtors (G began using them extensively in 1998,
and over half the cars sold in the 2004 nodel year are equipped
wth them Its data is designed to be downl oaded and used by car
manuf acturers to inprove the safety of their vehicles, but |egal
experts say that it can be used as evidence in civil or crimnal
court cases. The problem is that npbst owners have no idea
whether an EDR is installed in their vehicle. In addition, a
National H ghway Traffic Safety Adm nistration (NHTSA) study of
700 crashes found a 40 percent error rate in the data.

1:40: 14 PM

SENATOR ELTON said the NHTSA position is that EDRs and the data
recorded on them should belong to the autonobile owners. AAA
bel i eves the presence of an EDR should be disclosed to the buyer
and that the data should be aggregated and used only for safety
resear ch.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 2- April 6, 2006



1:42: 53 PM

SENATOR ELTON explained that Section 1 of the bill proposes a
sinple notification to the buyer, perhaps just a disclosure
tucked into the owner’s manual. Section 2 defines three ways
that data can be used: the owner can authorize its use for any
purpose; a court can subpoena the data for use as evidence; it
can be aggregated and used for safety research. He said that six
states have passed simlar legislation wth broad bipartisan
support including Arkansas, Texas, North Dakota and California.

1:45: 05 PM

SENATOR ELTON said that the Alliance for Auto Mnufacturers
suggested a couple of mnor changes to the | anguage and asked if
Chair Huggins wanted himto go over those changes.

CHAIR HUGGA NS replied not at this tine.

1: 45: 51 PM
SENATOR CONDERY asked if this is beneficial to the consuner.

SENATOR ELTON responded yes, but it is a double-edged sword. It
is becom ng nore common for insurance carriers to ask for data
from the EDR when investigating clains, and he believes that the
consuner should have the right to control release of that data
unless it has been subpoenaed or is required for safety
resear ch.

SENATOR COADERY asked if Senator Elton had said that 40 percent
of the data is inaccurate.

SENATOR ELTON responded that in its study of 700 crashes, NHTSA
had problens with 40 percent of the data gathered. Sonme of the
probl ens m ght have been due to equipnent damage during the
crash, or to download failure.

SENATOR COWNDERY asked how many cases in Al aska have used this
tool to prosecute.

SENATOR ELTON answered that he has not heard of any in Al aska. A
prosecutor in New York did convict the owner of a car on a
crimnal charge based on data that was collected from an EDR
but the data was accessed through a subpoena, which this bil
al | ows.

1: 50: 06 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 3- April 6, 2006



PAUL WLEY, Staff to Senator Kim Elton, comented that he
recogni zes that the data could be useful to insurance conpanies
for setting rates and investigating clains, and the bill does
not intend to hinder them

SENATOR CONDERY commented that insurance conpanies charge
different rates for different types of cars based on actuari al
data. He questioned what the benefit would be to the insurance
conpany or to the insured, if the data is not accurate.

1:52: 04 PM

SENATOR ELTON responded that an attorney might use the data to
cast doubt on the testinmony of a witness whether or not it is
totally accurate. He asked Senator Hollis if, as an attorney, he
could coment on that.

SENATOR HOLLIS said that Senator Elton is correct and, to the
extent that there are deficiencies in the data, they would be
di scovered during cross-exani nation.

1:53:41 PM

SENATOR ELTON said that there are different devices on a car
that collect data and are not inplicated by this |egislation.
The device that captures air pressure in tires is one exanple,
OnStar is another that offers road enmergency and |ocation
services through a contractual subscription. Sone insurance
conpanies provide a rate discount to custoners who allow them
access to OnStar data for the first 6 nonths of coverage. Bl ack
boxes are different in that the consumer is not told about the
presence of an EDR and he has no choice in the collection of its
dat a.

MR. WLEY added that, relative to data inaccuracy, it is nore
often a problem with the harvesting of the data and how it is
deci phered, than with the data itself. One reason for this bil
is to ensure that the data is extracted and read by people
trained to do it properly.

1:57:47 PM
SENATOR COWDERY asked who currently gives perm ssion to harvest
data on a bl ack box after an accident.

SENATOR ELTON responded that typically the information is
harvested by a car dealer or repair shop. One relatively benign
use for the data by car dealers is to assist in servicing. He
said that he thinks that use should be allowed under the bill.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4- April 6, 2006



1:59: 17 PM
SENATOR CONDERY asked whet her a car dealer mght access the data
even if it were not needed for servicing.

SENATOR ELTON replied probably not. He qualified that by saying
that there are uses the dealer mght nake of the data that could
be detrinental to the consuner. For exanple, if a person brings
his car in for warranty work and the dealer finds that he was
going 200 nph in second gear, it mght void the warranty. As
long as the consuner is aware of the presence of the EDR he
feels that the trade-off is justified.

2:01:15 PM

SENATOR CONDERY said that he can see both sides of the issue. If
a driver is going 80 nph in a school zone, he does not feel the
data should be protected. On the other hand, there is privacy
to be consi dered.

SENATOR ELTON responded that if a person breaks the law, the
police can obtain access to the data in the sane way they can
obtain information of other kinds to aid in an investigation.

2:02: 29 PM

He said a second-degree benefit is that, if the consumer knows
the EDR is there and what it does, a rational consuner m ght
behave differently, knowing the data being collected mght be
used against himin a | aw enforcenent situation.

MR WLEY remarked to Senator Cowdery that the bill is not
intended to keep manufacturers or dealers from using the data
legitimately.

2:04:13 PM
SENATOR COWDERY asked what the original purpose of the device
was.

SENATOR ELTON responded that it was to inprove safety in
aut onobi | es and passenger vehi cl es.

2:04: 52 PM
SENATOR FRENCH comented that Senator Cowdery has outlined the
conpeting policies in this issue.

SENATOR COWNDERY rem nded the conmttee that they heard a bill on
aftermarket parts a few years ago. That bill was brought because
research on data collected from EDRs disclosed that the use of
aftermarket parts caused a delay in the deploynent of airbags.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- April 6, 2006



He said that he thinks that type of benefit justifies the use of
t hese devi ces.

2:06: 15 PM

SENATOR ELTON said that he renenbers that bill and it represents
a perfectly legitimate use of the data, one that is allowed
under this bill. Data can be harvested for the purpose of
research to inprove autonobile safety. The one caveat is that
the auto manufacturer gets the data in a way that does not
identify the owner or the driver.

2:07: 02 PM
SENATOR FRENCH asked whether one has to actually plug sonething
in to get the data right now

MR. WLEY replied that in nost cases, yes. There are other
types of black boxes though, such as those EDRs connected to
OnStar using a satellite uplink

2:08: 08 PM

SENATOR FRENCH commented that it is not hard to see the next
step in the evolution of this technology. An insurance agent
could drive by the repair shop after a car has been involved in
an accident and downl oad the data using a wreless connection.
This bill provides sone neasure of privacy and forces the agent
to come to the owner for perm ssion to use the data.

SENATOR ELTON added that it is permssible under this bill for a
consuner to sign a contract with an insurance agent providing
access to the data; but that nmeans the consuner knows the EDR is
there and has nmade a decision to release access to the data. He
said he suspects that nost Alaskans don't even know their
vehi cl e has such a device.

MR. WLEY pointed out that another benefit of disclosure is that
the consuner could provide the data to police or to the
i nsurance conpany to <clear him of responsibility for an
accident; but if he does not know that the EDR is there, the
data is likely to be |ost.

SENATOR ELTON added that it is only beneficial if the consuner
knows about it.

2:10: 32 PM
CHAI R HUGE NS asked what the device costs.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 6- April 6, 2006



MR WLEY replied that it not a stand-alone device, it is
generally part of the airbag system so there is no extra cost
to the consuner.

CHAI R HUGE NS poi nted out that GM pays sonething for it.
SENATOR ELTON responded that he doesn’t know what that cost is.

2:11:52 PM

CHAI R HUGA NS commented that he supposes the consuner is paying
for it, but if the data is intended to provide information only
to the manufacturer, the cost nay not be passed on. He said he
woul d be interested to know.

SENATOR ELTON said he would check on it.

CHAIR HUGGA NS said that, in our society, representing a client
in court is often nore a sporting proposition than a search for
objective information; but if one is looking for the truth and
this box can provide the facts of the matter, he does not
understand why it should not be used.

2:14:15 PM

He also said that he assumes the accuracy of the data wll
continue to inprove and that it will ultimately be 90-95 percent
accurate and wreless. It mght be useful to the mjority of
citizens in holding down their insurance rates, because

i nsurance conpanies could properly target high-risk clients. He
t hi nks the people who would benefit fromit would want the data
to be made avail abl e.

2:15:59 PM

KEVIN O NEAL, Chief of Staff to Senator Tim Leslie, California
said that California was the first state to pass a bill like
this. This bill allows consuners to know the device is on the

car and controls how the information it captures can be used. It
is inmportant to remenber that the EDRs under discussion gather
information and only record in the event of an accident. AlSso,
the information is encrypted so it cannot be read except by
someone who has the right equipnment. It was intended for use by
GM to inprove the safety of its vehicles, not by police or
I nsurance conpani es.

The black box on an airplane is not a good exanple to use in
discussing this legislation, he said, because everyone knows
there is a black box on an airplane. Al so, because it is public
transportation, the public has a right to know what was recorded

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -7- April 6, 2006



in the event of an accident. One mght argue that a multiple car
collision also gives the public the right to know, but consuners
don’'t know that there is an EDR in their personal vehicles, so
it is a different situation.

He ended by saying that this is a good bill.

2:19: 14 PM
CHAIR HUGA NS asked M. O Neal why California did not choose to
di scl ose the existence of an EDR in the purchase contract.

MR. O NEAL responded that they worked closely with GV and
decided that the owner’s manual was the best place for it.
Manuf acturers print new nanuals for every nodel year, so it was
a sinple matter to insert a page regarding the EDR Al so,
information printed in the sales contract does not provide any
statutory protection in the event of an accident.

He said that he agrees that the data should be used if it could
prove a person was not at fault in an accident, but the
i nsurance conpany is going to fight over that anyway.

2:20: 34 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS comrented to M. O Neal that it sounds as if he
favors releasing EDR data only if it can prove a person was not
at fault. He asked whether he thought it should be used if the
i ndi vidual was at fault.

MR. O NEAL answered that, if a person is at fault, there are
ot her avenues to get that information. Under California |aw, the
i nsurance conpany would go after the information on the guilty
party’s EDR using a subpoena if necessary. Either way it wll
end up in court.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked M. O Neal if California has tracked any
i mpact on insurance rates since passing the bill.

MR. O NEAL replied no

2:22:17 PM

CHAI R HUGA NS asked whet her G eyhound buses have to be equi pped
with a black box.

MR. O NEAL replied that he does not know.

CHAIR HUGE NS asked if M. O Neal had anything to add.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 8- April 6, 2006



MR. O NEAL replied that there are republican principles in this
bill, which is why Tim [Leslie] carried it forward. If the auto
manuf acturers have nothing to hide, there is no reason that
consuners shoul d not know about these devices.

2:23. 47 PM

ED SN FFEN, Assistant Attorney General, said that he was
avai l able to answer questions and that the Department of Law
prepared a zero fiscal note, but it was not conpleted in tine
for this hearing.

SENATOR FRENCH advised M. Sniffen that the comrittee has a copy
of the fiscal note.

2:24:51 PM

CHAIR HUGGA NS said that this bill is intriguing, and his
reaction is to wonder how to |everage the technology to
everyone’ s advantage, not how to keep it private.

SENATOR ELTON said that is a good point, but he has a couple of
responses, neither of which is provable. He said he thinks there

is an effect on insurance. If +the data is wused by car
manufacturers as allowed under this bill, it should have a
beneficial effect on rates because cars wll beconme safer. It
also has the potential to change sone driver behavior, if
drivers know that data is being collected. But there is a “Big
Brother” elenment here as well. If these devices are installed
and working wthout the know edge of the consuner, it is like

having a “snitch” along all the tine. The main thing is that the
consuner knows it is there.

In sunmary, he said that he thinks there are beneficial uses for
the data, and the bill is structured in such a way that it does
not constrain those uses.

2:29:01 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS noted that it is a matter of perspective. |If
soneone close to you is a victimin a mjor accident and the
answer to what happened is in that black box, you mght care
very little about anyone’s privacy. On the other hand, nost
peopl e don’t want anyone to gather information about them There
was a terrible backlash in Anchorage when the assenbly approved
the use of photo radar, yet Al askans voted to put canera
surveillance in the schools. It'’s a matter of where it is, how
it is used, and how cl ose you are to it.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -9- April 6, 2006



SENATOR FRENCH said that he got a photo radar ticket and thinks
he is one of the only people who has actually paid one.

SENATOR ELTON said that the Chair's point was well taken, but he
suspects that any data related to a mmjor accident would
automatically be subpoenaed.

2:32:42 PM
SENATOR ELTON asked if he could go through the NHTSA s
suggesti ons.

CHAI R HUGGE NS agr eed.

SENATOR ELTON listed the suggested changes starting on page 1,
line 9, after "device", add the words "or feature", so that it
reads “a device or feature that is installed”; and on line 11,
strike “records where the vehicle travels”, because direction of
travel is not collected by a black box. On lines 13-14, strike
the |anguage at bottom of the page that reads “or has the
ability to transmt information about an accident in which the
vehicle is involved to a central comuni cations systeni. A black
box does not do that, and it inplicates services |like OnStar,
whi ch are not affected by this |egislation.

He apol ogized for not having these cleanup anendnents
incorporated into the bill before it was presented, but
Legi sl ative Legal was behind and could not get to it.

2:35:41 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS said that GPS and automatic data recording wll
soon be in cell phones, and he was just thinking about who owns
t he phones and dat a.

SENATOR FRENCH said that cell phone |ocating technol ogy exists
because the towers relay which tower is picking up your
information, and it is obtainable by court order.

CHAIR HUGA NS said that his point was that this conversation
wll get broader in our society, and the l|legislature has to be
sure about the precedent it is setting in how it approaches
this.

SENATOR ELTON sunmari zed by saying that he does not disagree. He
thinks that in this instance, as in many others, the cure is to
sinply let consunmers know what they are getting.

[SB 18 was hel d over.]

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -10- April 6, 2006



There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Chair Huggins adjourned the Senate Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting at 2:37:06 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -11- April 6, 2006



